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Request for Application (RFA) 

Collaborating, Learning, and Adapting (CLA) 

 

Amendment 01 

 
Issuance Date:   March 22, 2016 

RFA Title:    Collaborating, Learning, and Adapting (CLA) 

RFA Number:    KDAD-16-0006-RFA-01 

Grant Ceiling Amount:  $100,000 

Issued Under:   USAID Prime Contract Feed the Future Knowledge-Driven Agricultural 

Development (KDAD) 

Answers Provided By:  The Date of this Amendment 

Closing Date:   April 30, 2016 CLOSE OF BUSINESS 

 

The QED Group, LLC (QED) through its subcontract to Insight Systems Corporation (Insight) under 

the United States Agency for International Development (USAID)-funded contract Feed the Future 

Knowledge-Driven Agricultural Development (KDAD) Project is seeking applications from organizations 

from the United States and developing countries (Geographic Code 937). However waivers are possible 

for applicants from all non-restricted countries subject to USAID Contracting Officer approval. We 

encourage applications from a wide spectrum of offerors. These applications are for a Grants Under 

Contract mechanism to provide assistance for the program entitled, “Collaborating, Learning, and Adapting 

(CLA)”. The authority for the RFA is found in USAID Prime Contract Provision H.23 GRANTS UNDER 

CONTRACTS. The sum of the proposed activity is not to exceed the amount of $100,000 beyond an 

18 month period based on a Standard Cost Reimbursement Grant. Please refer to Section 1 – Funding 

Opportunity Description for a complete statement of goals and expected results. 

Issuance of this RFA Amendment neither constitutes an award commitment on the part of QED, nor 

does it commit QED to pay for costs incurred in the preparation and submission of an application. 

To be eligible for award, the applicant must provide all required information in its applications, including 

the requirements found in any attachments to this opportunity. This RFA consists of this cover letter 

plus the following Sections: 

1. Section I – Funding Opportunity Description 

2. Section II – Award Information 

3. Section III – Eligibility Information 

4. Section IV – Application and Submission Information 

5. Section V – Application and Review Information 

6. Section VI – Award Administration Information 

7. Section VII – QED Contracts 

a. Budget Template 

b. Progress Report Template 

c. Collaborating, Learning, and Adapting 

d. Learning Network 

e. Certifications and Assurances 

f. Other Provisions 

This Amendment 01 with the recent Questions and Answers, Webinar Recording, and Webinar 

Transcript are posted on USAID Learning Lab. Potential applicants should regularly check the website to 

http://usaidlearninglab.org/
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ensure they have the latest information pertaining to this RFA. If you have difficulty accessing this 

document, please contact grants@qedgroupllc.com 

QED reserves the right to make an award based on initial submission and this Amendment without 

discussion. Therefore, applicants should be initially submitted with the most favorable terms, from a 

technical and price perspective, which the applicant can submit to QED. However, QED reserves the 

right, to enter into discussions with one or more applicants in order to obtain clarifications, additional 

detail, or to suggest refinements in the program description, budget, or other aspects of an application. 

QED also reserves the right to make no award under this solicitation and Amendment if, at QED’s sole 

discretion, QED determines that the applications submitted do not satisfy the needs of the KDAD 

Project. 

Questions and Answers, attached and posted, are incorporated as part of this Amendment. 

Under no circumstances will QED, Insight, or USAID be liable for costs incurred by those responding to 

this solicitation, nor shall QED, Insight, or USAID be liable for any anticipated outcome from the 

submission of an application in response to this solicitation. 

All applications shall be submitted in English except such documents as may originally be issued in a 

foreign language. Translation of the application documents may be submitted for clarification purposes. 

Where there is an ambiguity or confusion in the English document, if a foreign language document is 

provided, the reviewers shall look to the foreign language for clarification; however, the English-language 

document shall be considered controlling for the purposes of any dispute resolution. 

Interested applicants must submit their application and acknowledge this Amendment with the required 

information to address specified below. Applications may be submitted via email. However, if required at 

any time, QED may request hard copies. If you decide to submit an application, it must be received no 

later than the closing date and time indicated above. Applications received after the specified closing 

date may not be considered and may be rejected, at QED’s sole discretion. All written applications 

submitted must be valid for a period of not less than ninety (90) calendar days from the stated closing 

date. All correspondence should be submitted with the name and address of the applicant and the 

subject RFA No. stated above, inscribed thereon, to: 

The QED Group, LLC 

1820 Fort Meyer Drive, Suite 700 

Arlington, VA 22209 

ATTN:  Rishiv Khattar 

Email:  grants@qedgroupllc.com 

Telephone: 703-678-4700 (main) 

Any explanation desired by an applicant regarding the meaning or interpretation of this request for 

application must be requested in writing, in English, to the contact person and address specified herein 

and must be submitted no later than the date and time specified above. This will allow sufficient time for 

a reply/amendment to reach all of the applicants by the date specified above. Any information that 

substantially changes the requirements of this solicitation shall be released through the issuance of an 

Amendment to the solicitation. QED may, at its own discretion, extend the deadline for the submission 

of applications. 

mailto:grants@qedgroupllc.com
mailto:grants@qedgroupllc.com
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The following Sections are changed as follows: 

Section IV – APPLICATION AND SUBMISSION INFORMATION 

II. TECHNICAL APPLICATION FORMAT 

From:  C. Implementation Plan 

 The specific activities proposed by applicants need to respond to the specific opportunities and 

challenges they identify in their own organizational structure, systems, capacities, and operating 

contexts. However, successful applicants will propose activities that lead to transformative 

changes in the way their organizations acquire and apply CLA at both a strategic and operational 

level. 

 The implementation plan should, at a minimum, address the following elements in any order that 

the applicant deems appropriate. 

 Understanding of CLA and the applicant’s alignment to USAID’s vision and objectives. 

 Summary of organizational challenges and/or opportunities that impede the applicant’s 

application and adaptation of the CLA approach. 

 Proposed approach, methodology, and instruments that describe how the applicant would utilize 

grant funds and measure CLA, shifting from an evaluative paradigm of “what happened” to an 

analytics paradigm of “what is happening and why”. 

 Commitment to active participation in the learning network, which includes attending all face-to-

face workshops, contributing knowledge and ideas, participating in peer assist efforts and 

contributing to the development of a collective knowledge product. 

 Past experience applying innovative approaches to monitoring, evaluation, and learning, 

particularly when measuring outcomes that are difficult to measure, including behavior change, 

social change, and/or organizational change. 

 Respond to the selection criteria provided below in Section IV. 

 

To:  C. Implementation Plan 

 The specific activities proposed by applicants need to respond to the specific opportunities and 

challenges they identify in their own organizational structure, systems, capacities, and operating 

contexts. However, successful applicants will propose activities that lead to transformative 

changes in the way their organizations acquire and apply CLA at both a strategic and operational 

level. 

 The implementation plan should, at a minimum, address the following elements in any order that 

the applicant deems appropriate. 

 Understanding of CLA and the applicant’s alignment to USAID’s vision and objectives. 

 Summary of organizational challenges and/or opportunities that impede the applicant’s 

application and adaptation of the CLA approach. 

 Proposed approach, methodology, and instruments that describe how the applicant would utilize 

grant funds and measure CLA, shifting from an evaluative paradigm of “what happened” to an 

analytics paradigm of “what is happening and why”. 

 Commitment to active participation in the learning network, which includes attending all face-to-

face workshops, contributing knowledge and ideas, participating in peer assist efforts and 

contributing to the development of a collective knowledge product. 

 Past experience applying innovative approaches to monitoring, evaluation, and learning, 

particularly when measuring outcomes that are difficult to measure, including behavior change, 

social change, and/or organizational change. 

 Respond to the selection criteria provided below in Section V. 
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III. COST/BUSINESS APPLICATION FORMAT 

From:  The budget should include: 

 Cost share in a separate column. 

 The breakdown of all costs associated with the project according to cost categories. 

 Travel expenses for three in-person, two-day Learning Network workshops in Washington, DC 

and staff time for participation in an online learning network community. 

 Comply with US government per diem rates for travel expenses. 

 Abide by the USAID maximum daily rates for staff salaries. 

 Submitted in US dollars and should address any exchange rates for staff salaries. 

To:  The budget should include: 

 Cost share in a separate column. 

 The breakdown of all costs associated with the project according to cost categories. 

 Travel expenses for two in-person, two-day Learning Network workshops in Washington, DC 

and staff time for participation in an online learning network community. 

 Comply with US government per diem rates for travel expenses. 

 Abide by the USAID maximum daily rates for staff salaries. 

 Submitted in US dollars and should address any exchange rates for staff salaries. 

 

ATTACHMENT I - QUESTIONS 

The following Questions and Answers are provided and made a part of this amendment. 

 

Q. Could a domestic proposal be connected to a developing country proposal and both 

($200K) be applied for as a unit? 

A. The total sum of the proposed activity is not to exceed $100,000 from a US-based applicant. The 

total sum of the proposed activity is not to exceed $250,000 from an international applicant. These total 

sums include all work with sub-grantees. 

 

Q. Are collaborative applications (from more than one organization applying in 

partnership) encouraged? 

A. Applicants should partner as they see fit to meet the objectives of this funding opportunity. 

 

Q. Is there a limit to how many of the potential award an organization can apply for? If our 

organization has two different innovative projects underway, can we submit a proposal for 

each. 

A. The evaluation committee will only consider one application per organization for this solicitation. 

 

Q. Can an organization superimpose this funding opportunity on an existing donor funded 

project? 

A. An organization can superimpose this funding opportunity on an existing donor funded project so 

long as the existing Prime Contract and United States Government Regulations allow. 
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Q. Are international organizations eligible to apply? 

A. QED is seeking applications from organizations from the US and developing countries (Geographic 

code 937). However, waivers are possible for applicants from all non-restricted countries subject to 

USAID Contracting Officer approval. We encourage applicants from a wide spectrum of offerors. 

 

Q. Are for-profit firms eligible? 

A. For-profit firms may apply for this funding opportunity. Please note that pursuant to 22 CFR 226.81, 

it is USAID policy not to award profit under assistance instruments such as a grant. 

 

Q. We would like to confirm that all types of organizations, focused on any of USAID’s 

work, not only agriculture, are eligible to apply. 

A. We encourage applicants from a wide spectrum of offerors. The evaluation committee will give no 

preference for sector focus. Applicants working in the broad spectrum of international development 

sectors, not limited to agriculture or the Feed the Future initiative, are encouraged to apply. 

 

Q. What would be the ideal type of organization for the learning network? Is there any 

expectation of similarity among the five organizations selected for the grants? 

A. There is no ideal type of organization for the learning network nor an expectation of similarity among 

the five organizations selected for the grants. Previous learning networks have included a range of 

organizational types. 

 

Q. Is current or past involvement with the Feed the Future Knowledge-Driven Agricultural 

Development (KDAD) Project required for applicants? 

A. Current or past involvement with the KDAD Project is not required for applicants. The evaluation 

committee will give no preference for organizations who partner with the KDAD Project. 

 

Q. Are there any direct links with this opportunity and USAID’s current IDIQs 1) Policy, 

Planning and Learning – Learning, Evaluation and Research, and 2) LEARN? 

A. USAID’s Office of Learning, Evaluation and Research (USAID/PPL/LER) is not an IDIQ. It is an office 

within USAID’s Bureau of Policy, Planning and Learning (USAID/PPL). USAID/PPL/LER manages LEARN, 

a mechanism to support strategic learning and knowledge management at USAID. LEARN will be 

overseeing and facilitating the learning network, in addition to providing dissemination opportunities for 

the learning network. 

 

Q. Which activities will the grant opportunity fund? 

A. Please refer to Section I – FUNDING OPPORTUNITY DESCRIPTION and use the Illustrative Areas 

of Interest as a starting point for opportunities this grant will fund. 

 

Q. Are the grants only intended to fund the monitoring and evaluation activities 

surrounding the organization’s CLA work or are the grant funds also to support 

implementation of the CLA activities themselves? Please clarify if this grant will only fund 

the monitoring and evaluation work or will the grant be able to fund the investments in 

learning and then measure its value? 
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A. Through this funding opportunity, we are seeking approaches, methodologies, and instruments to be 

able to discern the contribution and value (or otherwise) of material investments in CLA. Therefore, we 

are interested in the monitoring and evaluation aspect for measuring the effect of CLA investments. 

 

Q. Given the timeline, can applicants focus primarily on developing new tools for 

monitoring and evaluation of CLA or must further testing and implementation of the tools 

with partners be included in the 18 months? 

A. The purpose is to develop and refine approaches, methodologies, and instruments. We expect that 

testing will be necessary to determine their value and make adjustment accordingly. 

 

Q. Will you expand on what is meant by development outcomes, or if there is a preferred 

set of development outcomes? 

A. There is no preferred set of development outcomes. These are the objectives that your organization 

should set for the application. 

 

Q. Should CLA applications that are measured be at the project level, across several 

projects, or at an organizational level? 

A. We are interested in measuring CLA at all levels. It is up to the applicant to determine which level is 

most appropriate, given time and resources. 

 

Q. Is there any preference regarding the balance of quantitative and qualitative 

measurements that an applicant should propose? 

A. There is no preference regarding the balance of quantitative versus qualitative measurements that an 

applicant should propose. 

 

Q. Is there a particular kind of general intervention that is going to be tested? 

A. There is no general intervention that is going to be tested. 

 

Q. Would CLA activities drawn from non-USAID funded programs be encouraged? 

A. Yes, learning activities, regardless of donor, are encouraged to apply for this funding opportunity. 

 

Q. Will organizations that have active CLA activities be prioritized for grants over those 

that will be starting up CLA activities for this grant? 

A. No, organizations that will be starting CLA activities will not necessarily be at a disadvantage 

compared to organizations who have active CLA activities. The CLA activities need to be promising in 

terms of fulfilling the vision and articulating an understanding of collaboration, learning, and adapting. 

 

Q. Is there some expectation of cost share? 

A. There is no requirement for cost share under this grant, however it is highly desired. 
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According to ADS 303: 

Contributions, whether cash or in-kind, are acceptable as part of cost share if they meet ALL of the 

following criteria: 

1. Cost-share contributions must be verifiable from the recipient's records. 

2. Cost-share contributions may not be included as contributions for any other U.S. Government-

assisted program. 

3. Cost-share contributions must be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient 

accomplishment of grant project objectives. 

4. Cost-share contributions must be types of charges that would be allowable under the applicable 

Federal cost principles. 

5. Cost-share contributions may not be paid by the U.S. Government under another grant or 

cooperative agreement. 

6. Cost-share contributions must be provided for in the approved budget when required by 

USAID. 

7. Cost-share contributions must conform to other provisions of USAID guidance. 

 

The source, origin, and nationality requirements and the restricted goods provision established in the 

Standard Provision entitled “USAID Eligibility Rules for Goods and Services” do not apply to cost 

sharing expenditures. 

 

For further details on regulations, see Mandatory Standard Provisions for Non-US, Nongovernmental 

Recipients (continually updated): http://www.usaid.gov/policy/ads/300/303mab.pdf See specifically the 

applicable standard provisions on Cost Sharing (Matching) (Standard Provision Number 21). 

 

Q. Can QED please give more details on the specific form(s) of cost sharing that would be 

given preference, for example funding from a non-USG funded program of similar nature, 

unrestricted funding, etc.? 

A.  There is no preference for the source of Cost Sharing providing that they meet ADS 303 

Requirements. Please note the requirements summarized below: 

All costs, whether reimbursable or contributions to cost share, must have the following 

three characteristics: 

1. Costs must be reasonable, meaning they are generally recognized as ordinary and 

necessary and would be incurred by a prudent person in the conduct of normal 

business. 

2. Costs must be allocable, meaning they are incurred specifically for the grant 

project. 

3. Costs must be allowable, meaning that they must conform to any limitations in the 

Project’s award from USAID. 

 

Contributions, whether cash or in-kind, are acceptable as part of cost share if they meet 

ALL of the following criteria: 

8. Cost-share contributions must be verifiable from the recipient's records. 

9. Cost-share contributions may not be included as contributions for any other U.S. 

http://www.usaid.gov/policy/ads/300/303mab.pdf
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Government-assisted program. 

10. Cost-share contributions must be necessary and reasonable for proper and 

efficient accomplishment of grant project objectives. 

11. Cost-share contributions must be types of charges that would be allowable under the 

applicable Federal cost principles. 

12. Cost-share contributions may not be paid by the U.S. Government under another 

grant or cooperative agreement. 

13. Cost-share contributions must be provided for in the approved budget. 

 

Q. Under the Cost Application Format: the guidance for fringe benefits states that rates 

must be in accordance with the Applicant’s NICRA. In absence of fringe being included in 

the NICRA, would QED accept a detailed breakdown of fringe that is directly billed? 

A. Yes. 

 

Q. Under the Cost Application Format: the guidance related to annual salary increases 

notes that increases should be in accordance with the Applicant’s established policies but 

should be kept in line with the current Cost of Living Adjustment expectations. At times 

these may conflict, would QED consider adjusting this language for increases to be only in 

accordance with the Applicant’s established policies. 

A. At the time that a conflict arises between these two conditions we ask that a justification for an 

exception to the Applicant’s established policies be provided for our consideration. 

 

Q. Is there an option for QED to provide advances to a subawardee that may not have the 

cash flow available to work under a fully reimbursable basis Grant Under Contract? 

A. Subgrantees are subject to their subgrantee agreement with the grantee. The grantee can make a 

request to QED to provide advances. QED will consider this but cannot guarantee advance funding. 

 

Q. CLA is to a large extent, a diffuse process and not short-term. Is 18 months sufficient? 

A. This is a long-term effort and we would ideally have more time. However, we look forward to the 

progress we can make in the 18-month timeframe that we have. 

 

Q. Could you provide more details on how the learning network members will work 

together? 

A. The learning network members will work together to define a joint learning agenda. Peer assists will 

help address questions during implementation. Learning network members will capture collective 

knowledge to share within their organizations, among the learning network, and to the broader industry. 

Visit the Learning Network Resource Center to learn more. 

 

Q. Can you estimate the amount of time during the life of the grant that the grantee 

would be involved in learning network activities? 

A. We estimate two in-person workshops and the learning network members will define further work 

(e.g., virtual meetings) with their learning network facilitator. Active involvement in the learning network 

http://usaidlearninglab.org/learning-networks
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extends the impact of your individual grant. Therefore, the amount of time at the organizational level 

can be defined by the organization. 

 

Q. Are organizations as part of the learning network expected to expand the lessons from 

this learning network into other networks they are already a member of? If so, will this 

process be facilitated by the core learning network team and how? 

A. Organizations are not required to expand the lessons from this learning network into other 

networks they are already apart of. However, we hope that proves to be valuable. Past learning network 

members have been able to parlay their participation in the network into heightened awareness and 

practical changes within their organization and other communities. 

 

Q. Can USAID/PPL/LER share data illustrative of what is currently has on CLA 

measurement and how it finds it lacking? 

A. USAID/PPL/LER has multiple work-streams on this topic, this funding opportunity being one of them. 

There are currently no methods to share. 

 


